PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
5 Novemrber 1999

ENG.I SH
Oiginal: FRENCH
ECONOM C AND SCCI AL COUNCI L
Subst anti ve session of 1999
PROVI SI ONAL SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 36'" MEETI NG

( SECOND PART) *

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Thursday, 22 July 1999, at 2.30 p.m

Presi dent: M. W BI SONO (I ndonesi a)
(Vi ce-President)

later : M. VALDI VI ESO ( Col onbi a)
(Vi ce-President)

later : M. W Bl SONO (I ndonesi a)
(Vi ce- President)
CONTENTS

COCRDI NATI ON, PROGRAMVE AND OTHER QUESTI ONS (conti nued)

* The summary record of the first part of the neeting appears as
docunent E/ 1999/ SR 36.

The summary record of the third part of the neeting appears as
docunent E/ 1999/ SR 36/ Add. 2.

Corrections to this record should be submitted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a
copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this
docunent to the Official Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, palais des
Nati ons, Geneva.

GE. 99- 64827



E/ 1999/ SR 36/ Add. 1

page 2

(a)
(b)
(¢)

(d)
(e)

CONTENTS (conti nued)

REPORTS OF COORDI NATI ON BODI ES  ( cont i nued)

PROPOSED PROGRAMVE BUDGET FOR THE BI ENNI UM 2000- 2001

JO NT AND CO- SPONSORED UNI TED NATI ONS PROGRAMVE ON HUMAN
| MVMUNODEFI CI ENCY VI RUS/ ACQUI RED | MVIUNODEFI CI ENCY SYNDROVE
(HI V/ Al DS)

| NTERNATI ONAL COOPERATI ON | N THE FI ELD OF | NFORMATI CS

CALENDAR OF CONFERENCES AND MEETI NGS | N THE ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND
RELATED FI ELDS



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 3

The neeting was resuned at 5.10 p. m

COORDI NATI ON, PROGRAMMVE AND OTHER QUESTI ONS: (agenda item 7) (continued)
(a) REPORTS OF COORDI NATI ON BODI ES (continued) (A/154/16, E/ 1999/48

and E/ 1999/ 103)

M. SOARES DAM CO (Brazil) said that his country associated itself,
as a participant in the Ad Hoc Advisory Group on Haiti, with the statenents made

by the Haitian Anbassador and by the representative of Guyana on behal f of the
Group of 77 and of China. As one of the staunchest supporters of better
coordi nati on between the Economic and Social Council and the Security Council
Brazil considered that countries energing fromconflicts required support from
the international comunity and that the Econonic and Social Council had a major
role to play in coordinating the assistance provided by the nany donors. The
mandat e of the Advisory Group was very clearly defined in the Council's
resolution 1999/4. As stated by the Prine Mnister of Haiti, the Goup's task
was to strengthen the capacity of the Haitian State to take charge of its
responsibilities in regard to developnent. |Its recomrendations nust therefore
be bal anced and enjoy the full support of the Governnent. The group's report
was in conformty with the mandate defined; his del egati on hoped that the
Counci|l would support its recommendati ons and that a text could be adopted by
consensus.

M . CHANDAVARKAR (United Nations Devel opment Programe (UNDP) said
that UNDP, which had for many years been supporting Haiti's devel opment efforts,

was very encouraged by the neasures taken with a view to shortly hol ding

el ections. The Haitian authorities were preparing, with UNDP's hel p together
with that of the World Bank, the | M-, UNCTAD, WIO and the Internationa

Trade Centre (ITC), an international neeting on trade schedul ed for Septenber.

Pl anned within the integrated framework for trade-related technical assistance,

i ncl udi ng assi stance for the enhancenent of human and institutional capacities,
with a viewto helping the | east devel oped countries in their comercial and
trade-rel ated activities, the nmeeting was designed to assist Haiti in devel oping
its exports, creating jobs and strengthening its public and private

institutions.



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 4

M. RODRI GUEZ CELENO (Venezuela), in his capacity as coordinator of
the "Friends of Haiti", congratulated the Ad Hoc Advisory Group on its report

(E/1999/103) and its extremely inmportant recomendati ons. He unreservedly
endorsed the statement nmade by Guyana on behal f of the Group of 77 and of China
and stressed the need for the international comunity to give resol ute backing
to the econonmic, social and political devel opnent process under way in Haiti by
providing effective and coordi nated assi stance and taking concrete nmeasures to
enabl e that country, the poorest in the region, to extricate itself for good
fromthe crisis. That assistance nust centre upon the fight agai nst poverty and
Al DS and on strengthening of institutions and it nust correspond to the
Haitian Government's priorities, with extensive involvenent of all the econonic
and social players, particularly those dealing with education and heal th.

Ms. KING (United States of Anerica) said that the Administrative
Conmittee on Coordination (ACC) had not yet realized its full potential. As
noted in the Commttee's annual overview report (E/ 1999/48), it was inportant in
particul ar to exchange information on the new policy directions, strategic plans
and new programe priorities adopted by the various organi zations. The
United States noted with satisfaction that ACC intended to strengthen
consul tation and cooperation within the systemthrough increased use of
i nformati on and conmmuni cation technologies. It would be desirable for future
reports to contain specific exanples of the results achieved through the
coordination efforts of ACC, which should regularly informthe Council of its
activities.

The Conmittee on Programme and Coordi nati on (CPC) shoul d endeavour to
ensure that work plans were consistent with the basic nandates reflecting
strategic goals and not try to renegotiate those goals and nandates.

Sel f-eval uation by programre managers and establishnent of clear criteria of
performance were crucial in that regard.

Turning to the cal endar of conferences, she remarked that the Conmi ssion
on Crime Prevention and Crimnal Justice was scheduled to neet at the same tine
as the Conmission on Human Rights. Again, the preparatory session of the
Conmi ssion on the Status of Wnen was pl anned for the sane period as the session
of the Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts, though both required the presence of the sane
experts. The cal endar of conferences should therefore be reviewed. Finally,
conferences and meetings nust be arranged to take place at |east eight weeks



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 5

bef ore the substantive session of the Council, as provided for in the rel evant
resolutions, so that reports could be circul ated and studi ed before the opening
of the session.

M. PANKIN (Russian Federation) said that the Council's resolution
1999 was a very inmportant contribution to settling Haiti's problens and his
del egation was ready to take part in preparing a draft resolution on the
guestion. ACC s report for 1998 represented a step forward in so far as the
approach adopted was nore analytical, but it still contained no specific
recomendati ons on strengthening interaction with Menber States nor any
strategic vision for the future. No time nmust be lost in putting into effect a
concerted United Nations strategy for the reconstruction of Yugoslavia and the
ot her Bal kan countries and ACC must pay all due attention to the devel opnent of
Africa. Wth regard to cooperation between the United Nations system and the
non- gover nnental sector, he pointed out that there already existed a mechani sm
defined by the General Assenbly and the Council, for that purpose. The
strengt heni ng of that cooperation nmust proceed w thout undue haste and in
agreement with the Menber States. Supporting the idea of a strategic framework
that woul d enable the systemto respond in a nore unified way to emnergencies,
the Russi an del egation was awaiting with keen interest the results of the
studi es to devel op general guidelines applicable to intervention in crisis
situations. ACC nust also step up its efforts, currently linited to convening a
group of experts, in the matter of assistance to countries invoking article 50
of the United Nations Charter. While recognizing the usefulness of information
neetings, his delegation thought it would be nore to the purpose to append to
ACC s reports a description of the activities conducted by it during the first
hal f of the current year. Regretting the [ate submnission of the 1998 report,
whi ch precluded the Council fromexamning in depth the questions before it, he
suggested either shortening the tinme allowed for submi ssion of reports, even if
that nmeant submitting themin non-final form or changing the dates for ACC s
spring session. Finally, his delegation was ready to take part in drafting a
resolution on the 39th session of ACC, the results of whose deliberations it
gl obal Il y approved even though it had serious nisgivings about several paragraphs
of the report.

M . KAARI Al NEN (Qbserver for Finland), taking the floor on behal f of

the countries of the European Union and the countries associated with it,




E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 6

together with Cyprus, Malta and Liechtenstein, said that the European Union
woul d have liked to see in the report on the work of ACC an account of the
Committee's activities up to the end of the first half of the current year and
woul d appreciate it if that could be arranged in future. Wl com ng the steps
taken to streamine and strengthen the work of ACC, the European Union
consi dered that the Conmittee had an inportant part to play in ensuring that the
many interlinked issues dealt with by the various agencies were tackled in a
holistic and nutually reinforcing nmanner. ACC and the Council mnust cooperate
effectively to nake the reformprocess within the United Nations system nutually
supportive and pronote cross-fertilization of ideas, information and experience.
The briefings given by the secretariat about the work of ACC were conducive to
transparency and interaction and should be held pronmptly after the Comrmittee's
sessions. Publication of briefing notes on the outcone of ACC s di scussions
woul d be useful; a balance nust be found between the demand for transparency and
the suggestion in the report that the secretariat heads should have informa
exchanges of views about current issues and gl obal problens.

The three main topics considered in the report poverty, globalization

and Africa " were of special inportance. The problenms of Africa and of fighting
poverty were multidinensional and called for holistic strategies. To neet the
chal | enges of globalization, the United Nations systemnust act in concert with
other international organizations, with due regard to the specific conpetence of
each pl ayer.

Regardi ng eval uation of the followup to major conferences, ACC and in
particular its Subconmittee on Statistical Activities, which was collaborating
very constructively with the Statistical Conmi ssion, could contribute to
devel opi ng common indicators for evaluation. The European Union, noting with
satisfaction that reforms remained high on the agenda and that the report gave
all due attention to the broadening of partnerships within the systemas well as
with other international organizations and civil society, would like fuller
study to be given to the idea of closer cooperation with the private sector.
Concerning the outline of ACC s programre of work for 1999, the European Union
particularly wel coned the focus on identifying the chall enges ahead for the
United Nations systemand on the preparation of the nillennium assenbly.

The PRESI DENT, recalling the anendrment proposed by Canada to the
report of the Ad Hoc Advisory Group on Haiti (E/ 1999/103), said that in the




E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 7

absence of objections he would take it that the Council approved that anendnent
as indicated at the norning neeting (E/ 1999/ SR. 35).
It was so deci ded.

(b) PROPOSED PROGRAMVE BUDGET FOR THE BI ENNI UM 2000- 2001

M. PANKIN (Russian Federation) noted with satisfaction that the
draft programme budget was in line with the mediumterm planning priorities,
that the proposed appropriations for peace-keeping operations were sufficient,
and that the | evel of expenditure was |ower than the anount approved by the
General Assembly. He noted, however, with concern a trend towards increasing
the nunber of top-level posts, in contradiction with the current reform process.

He hoped that the nanner of presentation of the budget would be inproved and
that the search for economnmies would continue wi thout jeopardizing the programres
of the United Nations.

M . REYES (Cuba) expressed reservations concerning section 22 of the
proposed programe budget for the biennium 2000-2001 as revi ewed by the
Committee for Programme and Coordination in its report on the work of its
thirty-ninth session (A/54/16). The programres planned were not in keeping with
the eval uation conducted by the Conmmittee and, above all, the mandates and
activities relating to economic, social and cultural rights and to realization
of the right to devel opnent were treated as of secondary inmportance.

Furthernore, the funds allocated to preparing for the Wrld Conference Agai nst
Raci sm Racial Discrimnation, Xenophobia and Rel ated | ntol erance, planned for
2001, were quite insufficient. Again, the progranme of work proposed in that
chapter conprised activities concerning which the intergovernnental

organi zati ons had not yet taken any decision, while the issues of very specia
concern to the devel oping countries, such as the status of wonmen and socia
guestions, were treated |like poor relations. In sone areas the number of posts
had been increased while in others all recruitnment was frozen. Cuba reserved
the right to raise all those matters again at the next session of the

General Assenbly.



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 8

Tobacco-free Initiative
Dr. YACH (Wrld Health Organization (WHO)) said that the annua
nunber of deaths caused by tobacco were set to rise froma current 4 mllion to

about 10 nmillion by 2030, with 70 per cent occurring in the devel oping
countries. Despite overwhelning scientific evidence, the tobacco industry
continued to deny the harnful health effects of tobacco. The deforestation due
to tobacco production methods had serious environnental inplications, especially
in devel oping countries. It was the gravity of that situation which had
pronmpted WHO s Director-General to make the "Tobacco-Free Initiative" one of
the first projects of her termof office.

Those responsible for the initiative realized that tobacco contro
required the creation of partnerships to apply global and national strategies
for tackling the econom c and social aspects of tobacco production and
consunption. Thus, in the bilateral sphere, WHO had been cooperating with
UNI CEF in tobacco control activities anong children and young people, with | M
and the World Bank on tobacco taxation, and with FAO in seeking alternative
nmeans of livelihood for tobacco producers. In the private sector, WHO had
restricted its alliances to the pharnaceutical industry alone, believing that
partnership with the tobacco industry would not be ethically justified. At the
country level, aware of their crucial role, WHO was cl osely associating
non- gover nment al organi zati ons (NGGs) and | ocal communities in its tobacco
control efforts anobng young people and wonen and in exploring new strategies in
the area of recourse to litigation

At the international |evel, WHO s Menber States had unani mously adopted
resol uti on WHA52. 18, paving the way for the negotiation of a framework
convention on tobacco control. By confronting the cross-border problens of
tobacco control, such a framework convention would provide useful back-up to the
nmeasures taken at the national level. For its part, the United Nations system
must urgently put into place a strengthened coordi nati on nechanism The
Director-CGeneral of WHO had accordingly proposed, in consultation with the
Secretary-Ceneral of UNCTAD, the creation of a special inter-agency group, under
VWHO s | eadership, to replace the focal point previously set up w thin UNCTAD.
The United Nations Secretary Ceneral had approved that proposal and asked for
the matter to be brought to the attention of the Econom c and Social Council



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 9

M. KANBAUWA (Qbserver for Malawi) recalled that in its resolution
1993/ 79 the Council had requested the Secretary General to establish a foca
point for the coordination of nultisectoral collaboration on the econonic and
soci al aspects of tobacco production and consunption. The focal point had
t hereupon been set up within UNCTAD. |In several of its resolutions the
Worl d Health Assenbly had instructed WHO s Director CGeneral to cooperatate with
the United Nations bodies through the intermediary of the focal point on
"tobacco or health". In the resolution adopted in the current year, however,
the Wrld Health Assenbly made no mention of that focal point or of
mul ti sectoral cooperation. In view of the many initiatives taken on the subject
of tobacco control, Ml awi hoped that the Council would request the Secretary
General to submit to it at its next substantive session a progress report on the
activities of the focal point. He added that the Zi mbhabwean del egati on
associated itself with his statenent.

M. CGZURGERGA N (Turkey) wel conmed the Tobacco-Free Initiative, thanks
to which he hoped it would be possible to address the public health risks posed

by tobacco consunption, especially anbng wonmen and young people. The need to
gi ve wider scope to that initiative was a good reason for negotiating and

rapi dly adopting a framework convention on tobacco control. |In that connection
the Turkish del egati on wished to stress that the cornerstone of such
negoti ati ons nust be the wi dest possible participation of Menber States and of
all levels of public opinion in those countries. Further, the franework
convention rmust have a clear, precise and unchall engeabl e objective and its
provi si ons must be centred upon the issues involved in tobacco control, which
were the concern and province of WHO. The adopti on of a general text
acconpani ed by additional protocols would constitute a flexible and realistic
appr oach.

Ms. VOGEL (United States of Anerica) said that her country, though a
maj or producer of tobacco, unreservedly supported the initiative. The
scientific evidence accunul ated on the dangers of tobacco consunption was
el oquent enough to convince anyone of the need to protect consumers agai nst the
di shonest practices of tobacco manufacturers, who specially targeted vul nerable
groups such as children and young people. Tobacco addiction was unquesti onably
a public health issue, and the United States del egati on wel comed t he | eadership
role assigned to WHO i n tobacco control. The focal point set up in UNCTAD had



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 10

i ndeed done val uabl e work, but nmany United Nations bodies were not sufficiently
associated in its activities. There was therefore every justification for
transferring from UNCTAD to WHO the responsibility for coordinating
mul ti sectoral cooperation in the real mof tobacco control

M. URANGA (United Nations Conference on Trade and Devel opnent
(UNCTAD)) said that the focal point of which he was the responsible officer in
UNCTAD had been keen to cooperate with all United Nations bodies, especially
WHO. He was proud to see at the date of speaking that that cooperation was
giving concrete results through the opening of negotiations with a viewto the
adoption of a franmework convention on tobacco control. Wth regard to
mul ti sectoral coordination and cooperation, while ACC had approved the setting
up of a special inter-agency group under the authority of WHO, it had in no way
decided to abolish the focal point. What was nore, the Wrld Health Assenbly
had requested WHO to seek the cooperation of the United Nations system subject
to coordination by the focal point. The situation might thus appear confused,
maki ng it necessary, as the observer for Malawi had requested, to include the
matter in the agenda for the next substantive session of the Council

Dr. YACH (WHO) said that his organization fully intended to
associ ate all nmenber States and all parties conpetent in the public health field
in the negotiations for a framework convention on tobacco control. He agreed
with the representative of Turkey that the npbst suitable approach would be to
adopt the general text of the convention and then some additional protocols. As
to the coordination of multisectoral cooperation with the United Nations, it was
clear that the Secretary-General of UNCTAD approved the creation of a specia
i nter-agency group under the direction of WHO. The focal point set up in UNCTAD
had proved very useful in the past, but in current circunstances, wth tobacco
addi ction causing such grave concern, a new strategy was inperative. In
concl usion, he agreed as to the need to include the matter again in the agenda
of the next substantive session of the Council

VHO s “Rol I back malaria” initiative

M. NABARRO (WHO) said that every year 1.5 million people died from
mal aria and 500 million new cases occurred. The "Rollback malaria" initiative
 aunched in 1998 by WHO s Director-Ceneral aimed at instituting a partnership



E/ 1999/ SR 36/ Add. 1
page 11

bet ween Governments and devel opnent agencies. The success of the initiative
woul d depend upon the full involvenent therein of countries and | oca
conmunities. The global partnership to roll-back malaria established between
the President of the Wirld Bank, the Executive Director of UN CEF, the
Admi ni strator of UNDP and the Director-General of WHO brought together not only
devel opnent agenci es and Governments, but also NGOs, private firns and research
institutes. |Its objective was to halve the preval ence of nmalaria by the

year 2010. It was neither a project nor a programe, but a social novenent
operating within the wi der framework of health and human devel oprment and
enphasi zi ng concrete activities. Countries and |ocal popul ations, especially

t he poorest and, among them wonen and children, were the prine target of that
noverent, whi ch was backed by various partners carrying out independent and
concerted actions ained at strengthening health-service capacities. Governnents
were currently working out with their partners their own plans of action, with
hel p not only from WHO but al so from many ot her international organizations

whi ch woul d provi de technical support. During the com ng nonths WHO woul d be
preparing a global work plan.

The initiative also ained at sponsoring partnershi ps between the public
and private sectors with a view to devel opi ng new nedi ci nes and di agnostic
tools. The efforts nmade to reduce countries’ dependence on DDT for nosquito
control would increase the cost of the project. A database accessible through
the Internet would be set up and woul d enabl e the progress achieved to be
noni tored by country and by indicator. For the initiative to succeed, it was
essential that WHO shoul d reorganize its activities, that Governnents shoul d
give it their full support, that the methods used should continue to be as
effective as possible, and that sufficient resources should be nade avail able as
and when needed.

M. Valdivieso (Colonbia) took the Chair

Ms. VOGEL (United States of America), referring to paragraph 575 of
the report of the Cormittee for Programme and Coordi nation on the work of its

thirty-ninth session (A 54/16), expressed satisfaction that, thanks to WHO s
initiative, malaria was at last receiving the attention that the problem
deserved. If all countries and all United Nations bodies put their shoulders to
the wheel in the global partnership, it would, she thought, be possible to reach
the target set for the year 2010. The United Nations devel opment bodi es woul d,



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 12

she was sure, join in the initiative, which nust also, if it was to succeed,
mobilize the local communities in all the countries concerned.

(c) JONT AND CO SPONSORED UNI TED NATI ONS PROGRAMVE ON HUMAN
| MMUNODEFI CI ENCY VI RUS/ ACQUI RED | MVUNCDEFI CI ENCY SYNDROVE
(H V/ AIDS) (E/1999/64 and E/ 1999/ NGO 5)

(d) | NTERNATI ONAL COOPERATI ON I N THE FI ELD OF | NFORVATI CS (E/ 1999/ 74)

Ms. CO.L-SECK (Director, UNAIDS) introduced the Secretary-General ‘s
note on the Joint and Co-sponsored United Nati ons Programe on Hunan

| mmunodefi ci ency Virus (H'V) and Acquired | mmunodefici ency Syndrome (Al DS)
(E/1999/64), set up in pursuance of resolution 19997/52 of the Council. The
report anal ysed the current status of the H V/ Al DS epidenmic and revi ewed the
efforts undertaken by the Programme's secretariat, the co-sponsoring
organi zations or agencies, and other partners to pronmote nore effective and
better-coordi nated action at the country level in the context of United Nations
reform She hoped the Council would support the recommendati ons set out in the
concl usions to the report.

M. Whisono (Indonesia) resuned the Chair

M. MANGOAELA (Chai rman, Ad Hoc Open- Ended Working G oup on

Informatics) introduced the report of the Secretary-CGeneral on internationa

cooperation in the field of informatics (E/ 1999/74), submitted in conpliance

with the Council’s resolution 1998/ 29. He sunmarized the progress made in the

i nformation services offered to nmenber States. Anpong the npbst recent

achi evenents, he nmentioned the creation of the Econonmic and Social Counci

Web site and the broadcasting on the Internet of the proceedings of the

hi gh-1evel debate recently held in Geneva. Finally, he indicated that the

governi ng body of the International Tel ecommunication Union (ITU had approved

the creation of a network linking together all the diplomatic mssions in Geneva

(Network for the Geneva Diplomatic Comunity, or GDCnet), which would facilitate

exchange of information between the United Nations system and the Menber States.
Ms. KING (United States of Anerica) said that the decision to

entrust to UNAIDS the functions of secretariat of the cosponsoring agencies was

begi nning to bear fruit. The adoption of the first unified budget/work plan was



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 13

an inportant milestone, but there was still sone way to go. Noting with
gratification that the Goup of 77 stressed the role and responsibility of
CGovernments in controlling the epidenic, the United States wi shed to point out
that, while political will and progranmes of education and prevention were
essential, adequate financial neans nust also be available. Her country
therefore urged all Menmbers to respond generously to the coordi nated appeal for
funds.
Wth regard to informatics, the Ad Hoc Open-ended Working Group on
Informatics had done nuch to alert Menber States to the problem of the
M Il ennium bug and get the United Nations systemitself ready for the transition
to the year 2000. The United States was eager to work with M. Mangoael a, the
new Chai rman of the G oup, towards creating the "electronic United Nations"
desired by the Secretary-General
M . KHAN (Pakistan), speaking on item7 (d), said that his country
attached great inportance to the activities of the Ad Hoc Wrking Goup on
I nformatics, which had done nuch to create awareness of the information
revol ution throughout the United Nations system to facilitate access to
United Nations databases, and to focus attention on the problem of the passage
to the year 2000. His del egati on approved the actions taken by the
Secretary General to solve that problem It considered that the Ad Hoc Wrking
Group would be better able to pronbote its objectives if it was provided with an
expanded resource base. He would like to see an ad hoc United nations/private
sector task force set up to identify possible areas of cooperation. It was in
his del egations' view, inperative to formulate regi onal programes ainmed at
hel pi ng devel opi ng countries to gain a foothold in the electronic trade sector.
It |ooked forward to intensification of efforts on the part of UNDP to pronote
utilization at the country level of information technol ogies that woul d
facilitate exchange of expertise on sustainable developrment. Finally, the
Information Users' Group at Geneva was urged to continue working to get all the
m ssions connected to the Internet, and the specialized agencies were invited to
put computers at the disposal of the m ssions of devel oping countries.
Ms. CASSAM (United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultura
Organi zation (UNESCO)), taking the floor on item?7 (d), reviewed UNESCO s
activities in the areas of conmunications, information and informatics,

conduct ed through the International Programme for the Devel oprment of



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 14

Conmruni cati on, the CGeneral Information Programe and the I ntergovernmental
Informatics Programme. An inedepth study on national informatics policies was
in progress. A synposiumon informatics (Si npLAC-99) was to be held in Mexico
in Cctober 1999 in cooperation with various national and international partners.
In March 1999 UNESCO had organi zed in Malta a workshop for small States and
i sland States on the devel opnent of national information and comruni cation
technol ogy strategies. Two UNESCO chairs of informatics had been created, one
in Russia and one in the Philippines. Another chair, on informatics as a too
in teacher training, had been set up in Brazil

Wth funding from UNDP, UNESCO was hel ping Central Asian countries to
devel op their informatics capacities through the creation of training centres.
In Latin Arerica it had cosponsored the Fourth | bero-Anmerican Congress on
Informatics in Education, held at Brasilia in October 1998 and attended by over
a thousand participants. In 1997, at Bammko, it had organized in cooperation
with several partners a training course on the application of telematics to
devel opnent. At the subregional |evel, courses on network devel opment had been
organi zed in central, southern and western Africa. Finally, multipurpose
comunity tel ecentres had been set up in several African countries.

Ms. BENDOW ( United National Children's Fund (UNI CEF)) described the
main thrusts of UNICEF' s action within the scope of the UNAIDS programme, of
which it was one of the co-sponsors. The first need was to break down the wal
of silence too often surrounding the epidenmic. A major awareness-pronotion and
soci al mobilization effort was under way, and preventive canpai gns were
increasingly targeted towards the young. |In Zanbia, for exanple, nore and nore
young people were being enrolled as educators and counsellors to work with
peopl e of their age group

UNI CEF was al so working to prevent nother-to-child HV transnission. In
cooperation with WHO, UNFPA and the UNAIDS secretariat, it was conducting a
pilot initiative aimed at preventing transmnission fromnothers to children in
11 high-risk countries of Africa, Asia and Latin America. The problem of caring
for AIDS orphans was another of UNICEF's priorities, particularly in sub-Saharan
Africa. Programes were under way to provide increased support for foster
famlies. |In Malawi, UN CEF had hel ped the Government to devel op a national

strat egy enphasi zing fam | y-based care.



E/ 1999/ SR Add. 1
page 15

UNI CEF was al so conducting preventive and care activities targeted to its
own personnel. At Lusaka, a pilot project had been | aunched to make the
necessary support and care available to UNI CEF officers who had becone infected.

Ms. SOSAs MARQUEZ ( Mexico) observed that since its launching the
UNAI DS progranme had greatly contributed to pronmoting the principle of

systemw de joint action. It objectives would thenceforth be geared to

col I aborative planning and execution, especially at the countrylevel, which was
why the 132 thenme groups on AIDS were inportant. |t nust be hoped that the

gui del i nes whi ch the Council would be drawi ng up regardi ng the United Nations
framework plans for devel opment aid woul d enabl e those groups to conplete the
preparation of their common strategy for the 2000¢2001 bi enni um

Whi l e happy that the United Nations International Drug Control Progranmme
had joi ned the other co-sponsors of UNAIDS, she hoped that the nmandate and
specific contribution of the brandenew sponsor woul d be clearly defined.

Mexi co was col | aborating closely with the UNAIDS programe. The Mexican
Secretary for Health had been el ected Chairman of the UNAIDS Coordi nati ng Board
in June. The establishnent of a horizontal technical cooperation group
conprising the directors of the national AIDS control programmes for Latin
America and the Cari bbean had hel ped to i nprove national strategies and the
i mpl ementation of joint activities. The Mexican Institute of Public Health was
cooperating with UNAIDS, for exanple in studying the correlation between
m gration and spread of AIDS. The Mexican Health Foundati on was conducting a
canpai gn of prevention in pursuance of an initiative financed by the Wrld Bank
and covering Latin Anerica and the Cari bbean.

Ms. RUSTAM (I ndonesi a), speaking on item?7 (c), stressed the scale
of the havoc weaked by AIDS, particularly in Africa and, increasingly, in Asia.
The pilot initiative currently under way in several |owinconme African countries
nmust be strengthened and expanded to all affected countries. It was well that
ot her bodies in the United Nations systemwere joining in the UNAIDS effort, but
cl oser coordinati on was needed between the co-sponsors and the Programe's
secretariat. An endeavour shoul d perhaps be made to involve the nmedia, the
busi ness comunity and the entertainnent industry nore actively in the canpaigns
agai nst Al DS

Strategic planning at the national |level was inperative. Her delegation
was pleased to note that seven of the worst affected African countries had



E/ 1999/ SR. 36/ Add. 1
page 16

devel oped national strategic plans. Dissenination of information material and
awar eness pronotion nust remain a nmajor aspect of UNAIDS activities. For the
programme to be able to play its part effectively, it nust succeed in nobilizing
nore extrabudgetary resources. Finally, it was for the Council to help the
Programe work out a gl obal AIDS control strategy.

Ms. DJATM KO SINGA H (I ndonesi a), speaking on item7 (d), welconed the
activities conducted by UNDP to pronote, at the national, regional and gl oba

levels, the utilization of informatics in the service of devel opment. She hoped
that UNDP woul d establish Wb sites everywhere in the devel opi ng countries and
conti nue strengthening the programme of information on devel opment for Asia and
the Pacific.

Her del egation was glad to know that the United Nations Wb site would in
future be managed by the Departnent of Public Information, the technical aspects
being the responsibility of the Information Technol ogy Services Division
Noting that the secretariat planned to expand the share allotted to audi ovi sua
content, she expressed the viewthat for the tine being efforts should be
concentrated on the site's textual content, as indeed the Information Comittee
had reconmended.

The optical disk system very useful as it was for accessing United
Nati ons documentation, was currently approaching saturation point. Priority
must therefore be given to expanding its capacity.

M. ZHAO Jian (China), speaking on item?7 (c), observed that since

its creation in 1996 UNAIDS had played a major role in control of the epidemc
The wi despread creation of thene groups had enabled the initiatives of Menber
States to be better coordinated. The co-sponsors had worked in close |iaison
with the Programme's secretariat but they nust strive for closer coordination
wi th national programmes, while also exploiting their conparative advantages in
their respective areas of conpetence. Dissemnation of information remained an
essential activity for fostering and facilitating action at the national |evel.
Turning to item7 (d), he commended the effectiveness of the Ad Hoc
Wor ki ng Group on Informatics, which had done nuch to pronote the unitization of
i nformati on technol ogy by Menber States and their missions. H s delegation
consi dered that the Council should extend the duration of the nandate of that

body, which was rendering val uabl e services to Menber States.



